Minutes

Education & Children's Services Policy Overview Committee
Wednesday, 10 June 2009
Meeting held at High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW



Published on:

Come into effect on: Immediately (or call-in date)

Members Present:

Councillors Catherine Dann (Chairman)
Brian Crowe (Vice-Chairman)
Judith Cooper
Peter Curling
John Hensley
Anita MacDonald

Representatives: Anthony Little, Roman Catholic Diocesan representative.

Officers Present: Chris Spencer, Natasha Dogra, Maggie Waller and Julian Wooster.

Also Present: Councillors Tim Barker, Philip Corthorne, Janet Duncan, Paul Harmsworth, Mo Khursheed, Eddie Lavery, Mary O'Connor, David Simmonds, Michael White, Kay Willmott-Denbeigh

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTER COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING

Councillors Catherine Dann, Brian Crowe, Judith Cooper, Peter Curling, John Hensley, and Anita Macdonald declared a personal interest in all items on the agenda due to their roles as a School Governors.

3. TO CONFIRM THAT ALL ITEMS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND ALL THOSE MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE

All items were Part 1 and were considered in public.

4. TO RECEIVE AND AGREE THE MINUTES OF 28 APRIL AND 14 MAY 2009

The minutes were agreed by the Committee and signed by the Chairman.

5. BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE 21ST CENTURY

Action By:

The Chairman welcomed all Members and Officers to the meeting and requested Director of Education and Children's Services, Chris Spencer and Project Consultant Maggie Waller to begin presenting this item to all Members.

Officers began by recapping what the Building Schools for the 21st Century programme is. It is part of the national Building Schools for the Future programme, and Hillingdon entered Wave 6 of the programme in February 2009. The programme applies to secondary schools in the South of the borough, with schools in the North awaiting further clarification. The programme has £150 million to refurbish most schools in the South of the borough, with a further £20 million to spend on ICT. Some schools have been recently refurbished and so will not be redone, for example Barnhill and Guru Nanak schools. Abbotsfield and Swakeleys schools are in the worst condition and will be completely rebuilt. The People Referral Unit will be expanded on the Chantry school site as it is a very important school for young people with phobias or those excluded from mainstream schools for a particular reason.

Officers explained that refurbishing schools within the borough would prevent them from sending children out of the borough to study, which proves to be very expensive.

Officers said part of the funding would be spent on improving leisure services and increasing the number of services available for young people and adults in the borough. An example of this is increasing the number of specialist sport facilities available in the borough.

Officers said the next step in the Building Schools for the 21st Century consultation would be as follows:

- 1. The Pre-Statutory Consultation document would be sent out to all residents of the borough by 22nd June 2009. The consultation period would last until 21st July 2009, during which general feedback would be sent from residents and leaflets would be sent to all schools.
- 2. A Statutory notice would then be published.
- 3. The Statutory consultation would take place during September and October 2009.
- 4. The programme is hoping to be completed by 2014/15.

The Chairman opened the floor to questions from the Members present.

Members enquired about whether the £150 million is enough for the project and whether it is a guaranteed amount donated to the Local Authority. Officers said due to the economic crisis at the moment no amount of funding is guaranteed, though it is thought to be enough to cover this programme. The funding is available up until Wave 6B.

Members asked Officers about Abbotsfield and Swakeleys schools transforming from two single sex schools into one mixed school. Officers explained that both schools will be merged into one building but parents will still be given the option of sending their children to the single sex school. It is very clear in the consultation that the two schools will be developed with separate identities but there would be potential for them to be flexible in the future. There would be more collaboration between the two, and this proposal has been accepted by the schools. Officers said this move would allow the schools to

work more efficiently.

Members asked Officers about the availability and encouragement of vocational courses under the Building Schools for the 21st Century programme. Officers said a broader curriculum and more diplomas would be offered under the 14 to 19 provision. The National College for Schools Leadership has been employed to help schools develop their strategy for change and develop their specialist areas – this would lead to more music and art facilities. Uxbridge College and Brunel University are well engaged with this part of the programme.

Members asked about the involvement of schools in the consultation process. Officers said they meet with Head teachers of schools in the South of the Borough on a fortnightly basis in a forum called "Transformation Champions." Schools have set out their Key Learning targets and identify improvements that could be made to their curriculum. The strategy for change in each school has been mapped and will be reviewed and challenged.

The Chairman thanked all Members and Officers for attending this item, and allowed a ten minute comfort break during which Officers and all Non-Committee Members were given the opportunity to leave.

6. WORK PROGRAMME

Action By:

The Chairman asked Members to provide Officers with ideas for the Committee's second review, due to start in January 2010. The Chairman requested Officers to write a scoping report about each of the following topics and bring them to the Committee meeting scheduled for 9th September 2009:

- 1. Junior to Senior school transition: changes to the current transition.
- 2. **Effective Support and Intervention:** interventions in schools in raising standards, what have been successful types of interventions and ways in which the Council should deploy funding into intervention in the future.
- 3. **Safeguarding Children in schools:** an insight into current practice and performance, safer recruitment issues and the control the Local Authority has over safeguarding children in schools.
- 4. **Child trafficking:** what is being done to tackle this problem. The Committee agreed that, if chosen, this issue would be treated as a Part 2 item, due to the sensitive nature of the topic.

Agreed:

- 1. For Officers to come back to the Education and Children's Services Policy Overview Committee Meeting on 9th September 2009 with a brief scoping report on the above four review ideas.
- 2. The Committee agreed the Work Programme 2009/10.

INCLUSION REVIEW SCOPING REPORT

The Chairman asked Members to raise any issues with the scoping report for the Committee's first review topic for 2009/10: The development of Inclusion in Hillingdon schools. Members requested that questions 1, 2 and 4 be removed from the scoping report and summarised in one paragraph in the report. This was due to these areas being covered in previous reviews; however one

Agreed: That Education and Children's Services officers remove questions 1, 2 and 4 from the Inclusion scoping Report and replace them with a paragraph delivering background information in these areas.	
The meeting closed at 21:30	